The Annual Meeting of the Society for 1905

Was held in the Society's Rooms on the 17th August, A. Lasenby Liberty, Esq., V.P., in the chair.

The minutes of the last annual meeting were read.

The President and the Vice-Presidents were duly re-elected, viz.:--

PRESIDENT:

The Earl of Roseberry, K.G.

VICE-PRESIDENTS:

The Right Honble. Lord Cottesloe The Right Honble. Lord Boston The Right Rev. The Bishop of Oxford The Right Rev. The Bishop of Reading The Right Honble. Lord Burnham Leopold de Rothschild, Esq. Sir John Evans, K.C.B., D.C.L., F.R.S., F.S.A. The Ven. The Archdeacon of Buckingham General Sir Henry A. Smyth, K.C.M.G., F.S.A. Coningsby Disraeli, Esq. Colonel L. E. Goodall Arthur Lasenby Liberty, Esq. Alfred Heneage Cocks, Esq., M.A., F.S.A.

The following are the names of the Committee elected :---

The Rev. E. D. Shaw,	M.A., Chairman.
The Rev. C. O. Phipps, M.A.	Mr. Wm. Bradbrook,
Mr. T. Horwood	M.R.C.S.
Mr. James Rutland	Mr. E. Swinfen Harris,
Mr. George Weller	F.R.I.B.A.
Mr. R. E. Goolden, F.S.A.	Mr. Thos. Thurlow
Mr. Stephen Darby	Dr. J. C. Baker, M.B.
Mr. J. T. Harrison	Mr. C. G. Watkins.
	1

The Honorary Secretaries were re-elected, viz., Mr. John Parker, F.S.A., and Mr. A. H. Cocks, M.A., F.S.A.

It was proposed by Mr. Thurlow, seconded by Mr. Cocks, and resolved, that the Committee's nomination of Mr. Edward Wilkins as Treasurer be confirmed, and that he hold the office on the same terms as those on which Mr. Williams was the Treasurer.

Mr. Thomas Horwood and Mr. C. G. Watkins were elected Honorary Auditors.

Mr. Parker, in his report, remarked that his preface to Vol. IX. of THE RECORDS really constituted his report of the Society's work during the time Vol. VIII. was being issued, and the remarks he had to make as to the future prospects of the Society. He congratulated the Society on having prominent archæologists outside the County as contributors to THE RECORDS. In his paper on Wycombe Church, Mr. St. John Hope had solved several difficult points in connection with that important Church. A perusal of the paper, with the advantage of the ground plan and illustrations, would enable them to realise how exceptionally valuable it was. They were also indebted to Mr. Swinfen Harris for his paper on St. Lawrence Church, Old Bradwell. They also thanked Mr. Bradbrook for his paper on Wavendon Parish Register. With reference to the Jubilee Celebration, he called attention to the work done in connection with the Loan Exhibition by Mr. Cocks, Dr. Baker, Mr. Watkins, and Mr. Marsh. and referred to the memorable and historical address given by their President, the Earl of Rosebery, in opening the Exhibition, and for which the Society was much indebted. He referred to a letter from Lord Cottesloe, in which he expressed the pleasure and instruction the Exhibition had given to a great number of people, and would have done to a larger number had it been possible to keep it open for some days longer. He also had received a letter from Sir Edmund Verney suggesting the desirability of holding an Exhibition every year on some special subject, such as historical portraits during a particular period, woodwork, ironwork, or textile fabrics. When the financial position of the Society had been placed on a satisfactory footing there was every prospect of the Society extending its usefulness to a marked degree.

Mr. Cocks presented his report as Curator of the Museum. Lady Smyth had given another case for Egyptian antiquities, and they were indebted to her for the trouble she had taken in mounting the specimens. They had also received a present of dried Arctic plant's from the Nares Arctic Expedition from Mrs. H. A. P. Cooper; quarternary bones found in the construction of the railroad near Thame from Mr. Codrington; Egyptian specimens from Miss Hansard, niece of Lady Smyth; British and Roman antiquities, spinning wheels, etc., from Mr. S. G. Payne: dried flowers from Lord Addington: and two Saurian vertebræ from Mr. J. Ricards, Aston Abbotts. Mr. Cocks also reported that he had visited Hanslope Church, by request, to inspect what was being done in the course of the restoration of the building. That a letter had been written to the Vicar and Churchwardens by the Secretaries, suggesting that Mr. Oldrid Scott should be called in to advise as to the proposed removal of any objects of interest in the Church, and that they had received what he considered a flippant reply, asking them for a subscription towards the building fund. Hanslope was one of the most interesting Churches in the County, and it was to be deplored that it should be under restoration without due consideration and care.

Mr. Wilkins submitted the accounts of Mr. Williams, the late Treasurer, for the years 1903-1904, as follows:

Balance Receipts		s. 17 19		Payments Balance		s. 9 8	
	£118	17	5	L d	£118	17	õ
1904.							
Balance Receipts	$\begin{array}{ccc} & \pounds \\ 22 \\ \dots & 73 \end{array}$	s. 8 2	d. 3 4	Payments Balance		s. 13 17	
	£95	10	7		£95	10	ĩ

Mr. Wilkins also submitted accounts up to the meeting for the year 1905:

11		4	Payments Balance at Bank		5	Ĩ
£61	10	4		£61	10	4

A list of arrears of subscriptions was also produced, amounting to £82, but it was considered doubtful if they were all recoverable.

The following Bills against the Society were also produced, viz.:--

	æ	s.	α.
Mr. De Fraine	90	11	4
Congress of Archæological Societies	1	0	0
W. Y. Green and Co.	2	1	7
Ditto	1	8	7

Resolved, that the Treasurer apply to each member for his subscription, and that a special application to those members in arrear be made.

Resolved, that the necessary authority to Lloyds Bank be given to honour cheques drawn by Mr. Wilkins.

Resolved, that in consequence of the death of the Caretaker of the Museum, Mr. Phipps undertake to find a suitable person to fill the post.

Mr. Parker reported that in consequence of the liberality of certain lady members of the Exhibition Committee, the deficit on that fund had been made up.

Resolved, that the hearty thanks of the Society be given to these ladies for their generosity.

It was decided that the presentation to Dr. Baker, Mr. Watkins, and Mr. Marsh be made by Lady Smyth on a day to be fixed by the General Committee.

The Chairman, in calling attention to the very successful Exhibition, suggested the making practical use of it by a definite effort to provide a permanent Museum in Aylesbury for the County, and that if the present Endowed School buildings were considered suitable for a Museum, steps should be taken to start a guarantee fund.

After a short discussion, it was proposed by Mr. Bradbrook, seconded by Mr. Darby, and resolved, that a practical scheme be considered for purchasing the property at Aylesbury, being the Endowed School buildings, for a County Museum, and for raising funds for the purpose, and that General Sir Henry Smyth, Mr. Liberty, the Rev. C. O. Phipps, the Honorary Secretaries, Dr. Baker, and Mr. Watkins form a Committee to consider and report on the project.

The Chairman generously offered £100 to initiate the new Museum.

It was proposed by Mr. Phipps, seconded by Mr. Cocks, and resolved, that the thanks of the Society be presented to Mr. John Williams for the able manner in which he had conducted the finances of the Society for so many years, and the Society expressed its great regret for the cause which has induced him to relinquish the office of Treasurer.

Resolved, that the thanks of the Society be presented to Mr. James Ricards for the gift of fossil Saurian Vertebræ to the Society.

The following ladies and gentlemen were proposed, seconded, and duly elected members of the Society:-

Mr. Frank Fass, The Grange, Chalfont St. Peter.

Mr. G. D. Hardinge Tyler, 35, Courtfield Road, London, S.W.

Miss Green, Haddenham Hall, Thame.

Miss May Couper, Ellesborough Manor, Butler's Cross.

Miss Grace Broome-Giles, Holne Chase, Bletchley. Surgeon-Captain Charles John Deyns, Bletchley.

A. LASENBY LIBERTY, Chairman.

The Proceedings of the Bucks Architectural and Archaological Society

FOR THE YEAR 1906.

Condensed from the "Bucks Herald."

The annual excursion of the Society took place on Wednesday, July 18. The members and their friends met at Slough Station, July 15. The members and their friends met at Slough Station, where carriages awaited them. Among the party were: Mr. J. Parker, Mr. A. H. Cocks, Mrs. C. T. Adams, Dr. J. C. Baker, Mr. R. H. Barrett, the Rev. Canon and Mrs. Blagden, Mr. Coningsby Disraeli, the Misses Giles, Mr. J. T. Harrison, Mr. A. L. Liberty, Mr. C. W. Raffety, Mr. F. W. Raffety, Mr. E. L. Reynolds, Mr. and Mrs. R. D. Vernon, Mr. C. G. Watkins, etc., the whole party numbering about forty.

Mr. C. W. Raffety, Mr. F. W. Raffety, Mr. E. L. Keynolds, Mr. and Mrs. R. D. Vernon, Mr. C. G. Watkins, etc., the whole party numbering about forty. The first place visited was "Observatory House," on the left-hand side of the road leading by Upton Park to Eton. Here the party was met by Professor A. S. Herschel, F.R.S., D.C.L., who very kindly gave an explanation of the remains still extant of the world-renowned giant 40-feet Reflecting Telescope used by his grandfather, Sir William Herschel, K.H. The Professor gave a short account of his illustrious grandfather and the discoveries which he made, and pointed out in the grounds at the back of the house the circular ridge upon which the telescope was worked, the brick foundation of which still exists. It was taken down in 1840, and at the end of the lawn is preserved a portion of the tube. An ash tree in the grounds indicates the spot on which stood a smaller (20 feet) telescope, and near it is a small building containing copies of Sir William's works, pictures, and drawings in illustration of the discoveries he made. In the entrance hall was shown the mirror belonging to the giant telescope. Sir William was a native of Hanover, and, having passed a few years in the Hanoverian Guards, commenced his life as a musician and organist. On his arrival in this country he joined the Band of the Durham Militia, and afterwards officiated as organist at a church in Halifax, and the Octagon Chapel at Bath. Besides his musical occupations he found time to study higher mathematics and astronomy, and turned his attention to the construction of large telescopes. In order that he might devote himself exclusively to astronomy, George III. granted him a pension of £400 a year. Herschel settled down first at Datchet, and then at Slough. In 1789 he constructed his largest telescope, with the help of which he continued to make his astronomical observations until his death in 1842. His sister Caroline lived with him at Slough, and assisted him in his labours, and also made researches

After passing a very hearty vote of thanks to Professor Herschel and his sister, the party, leaving Herschel House, drove to St. Lawrence's Church, Upton; where Mr. E. L. Reynolds acted as cleerone. A description of this church was published (unsigned) in Hyper Brocours L. 200 (1850), with a plate of the Norman in THE RECORDS, I. 200 (1856), with a plate of the Norman sculptured representation of the Holy Trinity. Some notes on the church by Mr. R. S. Downs were printed in RECORDS VIII., 320, after the Society's visit to it in 1899; and these amplified are reproduced in the article on which this report is based. The brasses now occupy places in two of the arches at the east end of the south aisle. A shrouded effigy, kneeling in prayer, is in memory of Agnes Bulstrode, circa 1472. In 1860 this was apparently on the floor, and the slab showed matrices of her lusin memory of Agnes Buiströde, circa 1472. In 1900 this was apparently on the floor, and the slab showed matrices of her hus-band, William Bulströde, also of nine sons and two daughters, with an inscription, now lost. A rubbing of this brass was taken in 1819, and is in the possession of the Archæological Institute. The inscription ran thus:---"Orate pro animabus Willi' Bulströde et Agnetis uxor' ejus filie Willi' Norrys de Bray, ac pro animabus Ric'i, Roberti, Isabelie, Johannis, Edmundi, Agnetis, Thome, Rogeri, Henrici, et Georgii liber' (5) p'dcor' Willi' Bulströde et Agnetis que quidem Agnes mater obiit XII die Aprilis Anno d'ni M° CCCC' 72° et Anno Regni Regis Edwardi quarto XI° et predictus Will'mus Bulströde pater etatis 50 (5)." The next brass is one to the memory of Edward Bulströde, "Esquire for the bödy with Kings Henry VII, and VIII.," 1517, and his three wives, Mary, Ellen, and Margaret. There are figures of four sons, and of sik sons and two daughters. The effigy of the first wife and the inscription are lost, and were so in 1860. The third offigy is that of Edward Bulströde, Esq., 1599, and his wife Cecily, a daugh-ter of John Croke, Esq., ithy sons-Henry, Thomas, Edward, William, and deströde, Esq., 1599, and his wife Cecily, a daugh-et figures that the Hebrew inscription belongs to this arroar of the male effigy is particularly good, and so is the lady's dress Haines says that the Hebrew inscription belongs to this brass; there appears some doubt as to the meaning of the words, but they have heave heave function and be and the source of the words, with they have heave heave trad to the meaning of the words, but they have heave heave trad to mean "I heave they are bar on the words, with an and destroad to the meaning of the words, barderman brass: there appears some doubt as to the meaning of the words, but they have been construed to mean "I know that my Redeemer liveth." The remaining brass commemorates Maria, first wife of Henry Bulstrode, Esq., son and heir of Edward Bulstrode and Cecily Croke. She was the daughter of Thomas Read, of Barton, near Abingdon. She died in 1614, and had issue Thomas, Henry, Eliza-beth Durie, Edward Cordia, and Darobar The Letter, Elizaboth, Maria, Edward, Cecilia, and Dorothy. The latter was also probably buried in the same place. There is also a marble monu-Be mean to find any bulk of London, daughter of Henry Evans, and Jane, daughter of John Wake, of Cleveden, in Somersetshire. and Jane, daughter of John Wake, of Cleveaen, in Somersstanre. She was married in 1615, and died in 1631. A space is left to record the date of the husband's death, but has never been filled in. Sir William Herschel and his wife are both commemorated here. They died in 1822 and 1832 respectively. A new lych-gate has been erected at the entrance to the churchyard, inscribed on the outer side-"Mors Janua Vite," and on the inner-"In Memoriam II. W. P. 1902." Mr. Barrett showed the visitors a picture of the interior of the church before its restoration taken from the Gentlemac's of the church before its restoration, taken from the Gentleman's Magazine, December, 1846.

On leaving the church the party proceeded to Upton Court, which stands in pleasant grounds close to the church, and was formerly a cell to the Augustinian Abbey of Merton, in Surrey, to which the manor of Upton had been granted by Pagan Beauchamp, and it continued in their possession down to the time of the Dissolution.

Upton Court was formerly a much larger edifice than it is now, but about the beginning of last century the east wing, running at right angles from the south end of the building, was pulled down.

The remaining portion forms a very picturesque old house, and its 13th century root is much admired. There are traces still visible of the monastic fishponds in the grounds at the back of the house. It is now the property of the Earl of Harewood. The east front of the house consists of a central porch and a gable at each end with rooms connecting them. Mrs. Burton, the tenant of the house, showed the visitors over the various rooms, pointing out the different objects of interest which they contain. In the window of the dining-room or Abbot's parlour are some squares of Dutch glass with inscriptions, and in one square an inscription in Latin—"In solo Dee salus." On one of the panes is the date 1667. In the drawing-room are two recesses divided by a very thick wall, which are remnants of cells for the monks. They are now fitted with modern fire-places. Two of the apertments have handsome ceilings, panelled in squares, and in one of them—the refectory—is a very large old-fashioned chimney, which contains a secret room. which contains a secret room. After a cordial vote of thanks had been passed to Mrs. Burton

for her kindness, the members drove through Eton to Tull's Restaurant, in Thames Street, Windsor, where luncheon had been provided.

Immediately afterwards,

THE ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING

was held. Mr. A. Lasenby Liberty having been voted to the chair, $M_{\rm PL}$ John Parker gave a report of the transactions of the Committee during the year.

Mr. Watkins suggested that it would be a good plan to send to the members of the Society a copy of the resolutions and the agenda for the annual business meeting at the same time that the notices for the excursion were sent out. They would then know what subfor the excursion were sent out. Th jects were coming on for discussion.

No decision was come to on this point.

The Earl of Rose-The election of officers was the next business. The Earl of Rose-bery was re-elected President, and the Vice-Presidents were re-appointed, with the addition of the name of Mr. James Rutland, of Taplow. Mr. Stephen Darby, of Cookham Dean, had written intimating his desire to retire from the Committee, and it was decided to send him a vote of thanks for the services he had rendered the Society. The remainder of the Committee were re-appointed, and to supply the two vacancies, Mr. E. L. Reynolds, of Upton, and Mr. A. A. Hudson, of The Warren, Wendover, were elected. The Honorary Secretaries, Treasurer, and Auditors were also re-elected. The election of officers was the next business. also re-elected.

also re-elected. In the absence of Mr. E. Wilkins, the Treasurer's report for the year ended Dec. 31, 1905, was read by his son, Mr. S. E. Wilkins. (See page 259.) The number of members was exactly 200. Mr. Watkins thought that it would be to the advantage of the Society, seeing that the other offices were honorary, if they had an honorary Treasurer, and he moved that the meeting be adjourned. and a special meeting called to take the matter of the treasurership

and a special meeting called to take the matter of the treasurership into consideration, and also the subject of the revision of the rules. Mr. Raffety proposed, and Mr. Harrison seconded, that the whole matter be left to the Committee, with power to act and report to the next Annual Meeting. After some discussion this was carried. The suggested purchase of a suitable site in Aylesbury for the County Museum was also referred to the Committee. The following new members were elected:--Mr. F. W. Raffety, Rev. A. H. Stanton, Mr. A. H. Benson, Mr. E. Tudor Owen, and Major J. J. Stephen. Mr. John Parker, in his report, referred to the interesting character of the contents of the last number of the RECORDS.

character of the contents of the last number of the RECORDS.

The Archæological Exhibition was a great success, and he was pleased to say that a well-earned testimonial, presented by Lady Smyth, had been given to those who worked so hard and so well on that occasion. They had lost by death a valuable member, Mr. Honry Gough, the compiler of the "Bibliotheea Buckinghamiensis," which had appeared in the RECORDS. He hoped to be able to give a memorial notice of Mr. Gough in the next issue. Mr. Parker appealed for more literary support among members in Bucks. He hoped the Bucks County Council would exercise its power for the preservation of objects of historical interest. On the proposition of the Rev. E. D. Shaw, it was agreed that

the Committee be instructed to bring the matter before the notice of the County Council. Mr. A. H. Cocks said the Museum had practically overgrown its

Space, and the time was more than ripe for a removal to be made. Some skeletons had been obtained from a barrow situated between Stone and Hartwell belonging to the early iron age. These were ready to be put into the Museum if they could find room for them. He and Dr. Baker were going to commence making some excava-tions in the barrow during the next week, by kind permission of Colonel E. D. Lee, when probably more remains would be discovered.

A vote of thanks to the Chairman brought the meeting to a

A vote of chains to the Chainman brought the meeting to a close; and the party proceeded on foot to Eton College, where they were met by the Provost, Dr. J. J. Hornby, who conducted them to the principal points of interest connected with the school. The visitors were much interested in viewing the Provost's Lodge, the Library, Long Chamber, and the different schoolrooms with their old-fashioned desks, and panels upon which thousands of pamos had been cut. The room originally intended for the Library their old-fashioned desks, and panels upon which thousands or names had been cut. The room originally intended for the Library contains some stained glass in the windows of the time of Henry VIII., illustrative of the various kinds of books which were kept there. The school chapel was specially admired. The party emerged into the school-yard just as "absence" (roll-call) was about to begin, which furnished an interesting opportunity of sceing most of the bars.

about to begin, which furnished an interesting opportunity of seeing most of the boys. The Society is much indebted to the Provost for the trouble he took in conducting the party; also to Mr. L. S. R. Byrne, one of the masters, for much work in making the arrangements before-hand, and attention at the time; also to Mr. M. D. Hill, the Curator, and to Mr. W. M. Webb, the Assistant Curator, of the School Museum for graving the Museum and attendance School Museum, for specially opening the Museum, and attendance on the visitors

Tea, provided by the kindness of the Provost in the College Hall, was much appreciated, and then a drive back to Slough brought a most enjoyable and pleasant day to a close.

THE

Architectural & Archaological Society FOR THE COUNTY OF BUCKINGHAM.

Established November 16th. 1877.

RULES OF THE SOCIETY.

I. OBJECT.—That the object of this Society shall be, to promote the study of Architecture and Antiquities, by the collection of books, drawings, models, casts, bruss-rubbings, notes, and local information, and by mutual instruction at meetings of the Society in the way of conversation and by reading original papers on subjects connected with its designs.

II. CONSTITUTION.-That the Society shall consist of a President. Vice-Presidents, two or more Secretaries, a Treasurer, two Auditors, Honorary and Ordinary Members: of whom the Archdeacon of the County, being a Subscriber, shall be considered ex-officio one of the Vice-Pesidents; and that the remaining Vice-Presidents shall be nominated by the Committee, and with the other Officers be elected by a majority of the Members present at an Annual Meeting of the Society; and that every candidate for admission to the Society shall be proposed and seconded at a General Meeting, or at a Committee Meeting, and shall be elected, if he shall be proposed at a General Meeting and four-fifths present shall assent to his Election, or if proposed at a Committee Meeting he shall receive the unanimous votes of those present; but if any Member at such General Meeting shall demand that the candidate shall be elected by Ballot, the candidate shall be Balloted for at such Meeting, one black ball in five to exclude, and that on the election of a Member. one of the Secretaries shall send him notice of it and a copy of the Rules.

III. GOVERNMENT.—That the affairs of the Society be transacted by a Committee consisting of the President, Vice-Presidents, Secretaries, Treasurer, and Twelve Ordinary Members, elected annually at a General Meeting of the Subscribers; and that three do constitute a quorum; and that Members of the Committee in any neighbourhood may associate other Members of the Society with themselves for local purposes in communication with the Central Committee. IV. FINANCES.—That each Member shall pay an Annual Subscription of not less than Ten Shillings, to be due on the first of January for the current year, or shall compound for the same for five years by one payment of Two Pounds, or for life by one payment of Six Pounds Ten Shillings. And that if any Member's Subscription be in arrear for one year, he may be removed from the Society after three months' notice to him from the Treasurer, at the discretion of the Committee. When extraordinary talent in Architectural or Archæological pursuits is shown by any person, it shall be competent for a majority of the Committee to elect such person an Honorary Member without Subscription.

V. MEETINGS.—That a General Meeting of the Society be held at least once a year, at such time or times as the Committee shall fix, of which due notice shall be given; and that each Member be allowed to introduce Visitors at all General Meetings, except during the transaction of private business.

VI. PROPERTY.—That all books, drawings, papers, and other property of the Society, be kept by the Secretaries for the use of Members, subject to the regulations of the Committee, and that no books be taken from the rooms except with the sanction of the Librarian.

VII. RULES.—That no new Rule shall be passed, and no alteration made in any existing Rule, unless notice of the proposed new Rule or alteration shall have been given at the preceding General Meeting.

NOTE.—"The Records of Bucks" are issued annually. All Communications relating to the publication should be addressed to the Editor, Mr. WILLIAM NIVEN, F.S.A., Marlow Place, Great Marlow, whether from Members or other Contributors.

All communications relating to financial matters should be addressed to the Treasurer, Mr. EDWARD WILKINS, 23, Walton Street, Aylesbury.

All other Communications relating to the Society should be addressed to the Honorary Secretary and Curator of the Museum, Mr. A. H. Cocks, F.S.A., Poynetts, Skirmett, near Henley-on Thames.

December, 1906.

BUCKS ARCHITECTURAL & ARCHÆOLOGICAL SOCIETY .- Dec. 1906.

Officers.

(With date of election to present Office.)

[This is the first time that dates have been appended, and it has proved impossible to make the List complete. Members are requested kindly to supply the Hon. Sec. with any information in their power as to omissions, or errors.]

President.

1901, Dec. THE RIGHT HON. THE EARL OF ROSEBERY, K.G.

Vice-Presidents.

1894.	THE RIGHT HON, LORD COTTESLOE. D.L.
1900, Aug.	THE RIGHT HON. LORD BOSTON, D.L.
1901, Dec.	THE RIGHT REV. THE LORD BISHOP OF OXFORD
1894.	THE RIGHT REV. THE LORD BISHOP OF READING
1894.	THE RIGHT HON. LORD BURNHAM
1892, July.	LEOPOLD DE ROTHSCHILD, ESQ.
1895, Aug.	SIR JOHN EVANS, K.C.B., D.C.L., F.R.S., F.S.A.
1897, Aug.	THE VEN. THE ARCHDEACON OF BUCKINGHAM
1899, Feb.	COLONEL L. E. GOODALL, D.L.
1899, Feb.	CONINGSBY DISRAELI, ESQ.
1900, Aug.	ARTHUR LASENBY LIBERTY, ESQ., D.L.
1900, Aug.	Alfred Heneage Cocks, Esq., M.A., F.S.A.
1000 T-1-	Textus Dumestan Mag. DO C

1906, July. JAMES RUTLAND, ESQ., F.G.S.

Committee.

1897, Aug. THE REV. E. D. SHAW, M.A., Chairman.

1890, July.	Mr. T. Horwood
1893.	MR. GEORGE WELLER
	MR. E. SWINFEN HARRIS, F.R.I.B.A.
1896, Aug.	Mr. R. E. GOOLDEN, F.S.A.
1897, Aug.	THE REV. C. O. PHIPPS, M.A.
1899, July.	MR. J. T. HARRISON
, ,	Mr. Thomas Thurlow
1900, Aug.	MR. WM. BRADBROOK, M.R.C.S.
1905. Ű	DR. J. C. BAKER, M.B., M.B.O.U.
1905.	Mr. C. G. Watkins
1906, July.	Mr. E. L. Reynolds
1906, Dec.	MR. R. HAROLD RUSSELL

Editor.

1907, Jan. MR. WILLIAM NIVEN, F.S.A.

Honorary Secretary, and Curator of the Museum.

1892. Mr. A. H. Cocks, M.A., F.S.A., M.B.O.U.

Assistant Curator.

1906, Oct. Dr. J. C. BAKER, M.B., M.B.O.U.

Treasurer.

1905, July. MR. EDWARD WILKINS

Auditors.

1891.

MR. THOMAS HORWOOD | 1905, July. MR. C. G. WATKINS

Ordinary Members.

 (Names marked with * are Life Members. The date attached to each name is that of the Member's election.)
 1906, Feb. ADAMS, HY, AUG., M.A., The Pozzle, Aston Clinton, Tring

ADAMS, HY. AUG., M.A., The Pozzle, Aston Clinton, Tring ADAMS, Mrs. ELIZABETH HARRIET, Manor Farm, Wendover 1906, Feb. ADDINGTON, Rt. Hon. Lord, Addington Manor, Winslow 1858, Aug. ALLFREY, FRANCIS, BURY Lawn, Newport Pagnell ARMSTRONG, JAMES T., Desburga, Walter's Ash, Hughenden 1900, Aug. ARNATT, Mrs. CECILIA, Manor House, Tingewick 1896, June. *Astor, Hon. WILLIAM WALDORF, Cliveden, Taplow 1896, Aug. BAILEY, W., Terrier's Green, High Wycombe 1896, Ang. BAILEY, Mrs. W., Terrier's Green, High Wycombe 1903, Aug. BAKER, J. C., M.B., Aylesbury BARBER, Ven. E., Archdeacon of Chester 1899, Feb. *BARLOW, Sir THOMAS, Bart., 10, Wimpole Street, London, W. BARRETT, R. H., Grove Lodge, Slough BAYNES, Miss H. C., Buckingham Street, Aylesbury BECK, SEPTIMUS F., Great Missenden 1906, Feb. 1906, July. BENSON, A. H., Ankerwycke, Wraysbury 1899, Feb. *BENTLEY, RICHARD, F.S.A., Upton, Slough 1906, Oct. BERRY, JAS., F.R.C.S., 21, Wimpole Street, W. 1869, July. BLAGDEN, Rev. Canon, Peverel Court, Stone, Aylesbury BLAIKIE, ROBERT M., 27, High Street, High Wycombe 1906, Oct. 1898, July. Boston, Right Honble. Lord, Iledsor House, Maidenhead BOURKE, Ven. Archdeacon, Hill House, Taplow BRADEROOK, W., Bletchley 1896, Aug. 1897, Dec. BULL, F. W., Risdene, Kettering BURNEY, Col. H. E., Wavendon Tower, Bletchley 1896. 1893. BURNHAM, Rt. Hon. Lord, Hall Barn Park, Beaconsfield 1900, Aug. BUTCHER, FRANCIS JOSEPH, Chesham Bois 1904, Feb. CARR-GOMM, F. C., Farnham Chase, Slough 1906, Feb. CARRINGTON, GEORGE, Missenden Abbey 1860.CARTWRIGHT, Rev. F. W., Aynhoe Rectory, Banbury 1902, Feb. CHADWICK, JOHN, Bletchley CHALLIS, Rev. J. L., Stone Vicarage, Aylesbury CHEESMAN, J., M.D., Buckingham. CHEYNE, E., Springfield, Hatch End, Middlesex 1906, Feb. CHILTON, C. C., Buckingham Road, Aylesbury CLARKE, DANIEL, Havenfield, High Wycombe 1872, July. *Cocks, A. H., Poynetts, Skirmett, near Henley-on-Thames 1873, July. COTTESLOE, Rt. Hon. Lord, Swanbourne House, Winslow COUPER, Miss MAY, Ellesborough Manor, Batler's Cross 1905, Aug. 1902, July. CRIPPS, C. A., K.C., Parmoor, Hambleden, Henley-on-Thames 1905, July. CROMWELL, Rev. Canon JOHN GABRIEL, M.A., 10, Upton Park, Slough CROUCH, W., Aylesbury 1880, July. 1902, July. CRUIKSHANK, Rev. J. W., The Vicarage, Bledlow 1901, Nov. CRUM, Rev. J. M. C., Cuddesden Palace, Wheatley, Oxon 1894DARBY, STEPHEN, Starlings, Cookham Dean, Berks 1905, May. DAVIES, A. MORLEY, F.G.S., Underwood, Winchmore Hill, Amersham DEANE, Lieut.-Col. RICHARD WOODFORDE, Royal Hibernian 1902, Feb. Military School, Phœnix Park, Dublin *DE FRAINE, G. T., Aylesbury 1860, Oct.

ORDINARY MEMBERS.

1900, Dec. 1905, Aug.	*DEVERELL, F. H., 7, Grote's Place, Blackheath, S.E. DEVNS, Dr. CHARLES JOHN, Bletchley DEGREGAT, Page R. R. Scoop Viceneous, Barka
1885. 1897 Dec	DICKSON, Rev. R. B., Speen Vicarage, Berks. *DISEAELI, CONINGSBY, Horsendon House, Prince's Risborough
1897, Dec. 1906, Feb.	DISRAEL, COMMESSY, Holsendon House, Prince's Misborough Dormer, The Lord, Peterley Manor, Great Missenden
1897, Dec.	*DOVE, Miss, The Abbey, High Wycombe
1007, 200	DOVER, J. G., Brightwell Hill, Wallingford
	DRAKE, Rev. W. T. TYRWHITT, Great Gaddesden Vicarage, Herts
1906, Nov.	DUNCAN, LieutCol. WM., Shenley
,	
1906, Feb.	ELLISTON, R. J., Tring Road, Aylesbury
1898, July.	ELSOM, C. H., Highfield, High Wycombe
1856.	*Evans, Sir J., K.C.B., D.C.L., F.S.A., Britwell, Berkhamsted,
	Herts
1000	Representation I C 10 Preshow Disc. Shutterni
1860.	FARMBOROUGH, Rev. J. C., 19, Evesham Place, Stratford-on-
1005 400	Avon Fass, Frank G., The Grange, Chalfont St. Peter
1905, Aug. 1906, May	FIELD, Rev. FRED. FRANCIS, Woughton-on-the-Green Rectory,
2000, 11ay	Bletchley
1899, Dec.	FLOOD, ALFRED E., Rowborough, Cookham
1898, July.	FOAT, W., Aylesbury
1902, July.	FORSYTH, W. A., F.R.I.B.A., 16, Great Marlborough Street,
	London, W.
1895.	FRANCIS, E. C., Chesham
1906, Oct.	FRANKLIN, Mrs. (CAROLINE), Chartridge, Chesham
	*FREMANTLE, Hon. T. F., Wistow House, 15, Chelsea Embank-
1005 11	ment, S.W.
1905, Nov.	FRENCH, EDWIN JOHN, High Street, Winslow
1898, Feb.	GARRY, Rev. Canon, The Rectory, Taplow
2000) 2001	GILBEY, ALFRED, Wooburn Park, Maidenhead
	GILES, Miss, London Road, High Wycombe
1905, A ng.	GILES, Miss GRACE BROOME, Holne Chase, Bletchley
1894.	GOODALL, Col. L. E., Dinton Hall, Aylesbury
	GOOLDEN, R. E., F.S.A., Horton Grange, Maidenhead
	*GRAVES, JOHN HICKS, Manor House, Bradenham, High
	Wycombe
1005 1	GRAVES, Rev. M., The Vicarage, Turville, Henley-on-Thames
1905, Aug.	GREEN, Miss F. E., Haddenham Hall, Thame
1900, Dec.	GREEN, G. A. B., High Wycombe GROVE, WALTER MORRIS, Watercroft, Penn, Amersham
1905, May 1897 March	GROVE, WALLER MORRIS, Watercholt, Fenn, Amersham
1906, Nov.	GURNEY, Rev. GERALD, Little Colstrop, Hambleden, Henley-
1000, 1101.	on-Thames.
1860.	GURNEY, T., Hartwell, Aylesbury
	· · · · · · · · · · · ·
1899, July.	HADDOCK, FRANK, High Wycombe
1902, July.	HARBEN, H. A., F.S.A., Newlands, Chalfont St. Peter
1870, July.	HARRIS, E. SWINFEN, F.R.I.B.A., Stony Stratford
1860.	HARRISON, J. T., The Poplars, Backingham
1906, Nov.	HARRISON, ROBERT G., Slough
	HART, E., The Abbey, Aston Abbots HAZELL, W., Aylesbury
1000 0-4	HAZEND, W., AVIESDUTY
1906, Oct.	HEWITT, T. W. G., Turville Court, Henley-on-Thames

1899, July. HOBART-HAMPDEN, Rev. A. K., The Rectory, Great Kimble

256		RECORDS OF BUCKINGHAMSHIRE.
1860, 1904,		Horwood, T., Aylesbury Horwood, Mrs. T., Aylesbury Howg, Rt. Hon. Earl, Penn House, Amersham
$1904, \\1898, \\1902, \\1895.$	July.	HUDSON, A. A., Bacombe Warren, Wendover HUDSON, R. W., Danesfield, Great Marlow HUMPHRY, H. V., Bucks Asylum, Stone HUNT, Rev. Robert WALTER CAREW, Reading
1899,	Dec.	IRBY, The Hon. CRCIL S., Hitcham Grange, Taplow
1906,		JAMES, JULIAN M., Temple Square, Aylesbury *JAQUES, LEONARD, Easby House, Richmond, Yorkshire
1899, 1902, 1900,	July.	KEATING, Miss G., Cannon Mill Cottage, Chesham KERR, HUGH, M.D., Bucks County Asylum, Stone, Aylesbury KEYSER, CHARLES EDWARD, M.A., F.S.A., Aldermaston Court, Reading
1906,	Oct.	KINNEAR, W. R., Lindisfarne Cottage, Stone
1901,	Dec.	LATHBURY, Rev. R. H., The Rectory, Denham LAYTON, T., F.S.A., 22, Kew Bridge Road, Middlesex
1905,	April.	LEE, Mrs., Hartwell Honse, LEIGH, E. C. AUSTEN, M.A., The College, Eton LEVI, W. J., Wonghton Honse, Bletchley LIBERTY, A. L., Lee Manor, Great Missenden
1904,	May.	LIBERTY, Mrs. A. L., Lee Manor, Great Missenden LIVERFOOL, The Earl of, 2, Carlton House Terrace, S.W. LOWNDES, C., Stratford-on-Avon LOWNDES, J. L., Aylesbury LOWNDES, W. L., 27, Marine Parade, Dover
1860-(1890,		[*] Манк, Hug <i>H</i> , Nightingale, Amersham Manning, P., M.A., F.S.A., 6, St. Aldate's, Oxford Martyn, Rev. T. W., Aston Abbots Vicarage, Aylesbury
1903, 1888,		MORISON, L. J., Northend, Nr. Henley-on-Thames *MYRES, J. L., Norham Gardens, Oxford
1902, 1905,		NIVEN, W., F.S.A., Marlow Place, Great Marlow Norris, Rev. C. L., Newnton Longville
1899, 1860. 1906, 1901.	* July.	OLIVER, Rev. H. F., Fenny Stratford Vicarage ORMOND, Rev. J., The Oast. Hale, Farnham OWEN, E. TUDOR, Littledene, Loudwater OXFORD, The Right Rev. The Lord Bishop of, The Palace, Cuddesdon
1905, 1906, 1906, 1860-0 1904, 1858, 1896,	Nov. Nov. 33. May. Aug. Ang.	PAREZ, Rev. CLAUD H., Mentmore Vicarage, Leighton Buzzard PARKER, J. CLEMENT, B.A., Desborough Honse, High Wycombe PARROTT, F. B., Aylesbury PARROTT, FRANCIS HAYWARD, Walton House, Aylesbury PARROTT, T., Aylesbury PARROT, E., H. Stoke House, Stoke Poges, Slough PAYNE, S. G., Aylesbury PEARSON, Rev. C. W., M.A., Walton Vicarage, Aylesbury PEGGE, J. W. GARRETT, Chesham House, Chesham Bois

ORDINARY MEMBERS.

* 1896, Ang. 1898, July. 1896, Aug. 1905.	PENTON, Capt. F. T., Goring Park, Nr. Worthing PHIPPS, Rev. C. O., M.A., The Vicarage, Aylesbury PIGOT, Rev. J. C., Cublington Rectory, Leighton Bazzard PIGOTT, C., Brook House, Aylesbury PIGOTT, Mrs., Brenley House, near Faversham
1906, July. 1903, Aug.	RAFFETY, C. W., High Wycombe RAFFETY, FRANK W., 2, Garden Court, Temple READING, Rt. Rev. Bishop of, Abingdon REDINGTON, W. A., High Wycombe
1899, Feb. 1903, Oct.	REYNOLDS, L. W., The Priory, High Wycombe REYNOLDS, E. L., Winsford, Upton, Slough RICHMOND, R., Leighton Buzzard
1882, Aug. 1900, Aug.	RISLEY, Rev. W. C., Shalstone Rectory, Buckingham ROBERTS, Miss FRANCES M., Haddenham, Thame
	ROBSON, Rev. W., The Vicarage, Lacey Green ROSCOE, E. S., The Court, Hornhill, Chalfont St. Peter *ROSEBERY, Rt. Hon. Earl of, Mentmore, Leighton Buzzard
1892, July. 1888, July. 1866-7.	ROTHSCHILD, L. DE, Ascott Park, Leighton Buzzard RUSSELL, R. H., Radcliffe Grange, Buckingham RUTLAND, JAMES, F.G.S., The Gables, Taplow
1900, Aug.	SAVILL, H., Stewkley, Leighton Buzzard SHAW, JAMES, M.D., Aylesbury
1895. 1905, May. 1869, July.	SHAW, Rev. E. D., M.A., The Vicarage, High Wycombe SKULL, F., Fairwood Cottage, High Wycombe SMITH, Rev. A., Wendover Vicarage
1891. 1901, Nov. 1906, July.	SMITH, Hon. W. F. D., M.P., Greenlands, Hambleden SMITH, Lady, The Lodge, Stone, Aylesbury STANTON, Rev. A. H., Hambleden Rectory, Henley-on-Thames
1903, Aug. 1906, July.	STEARNS, J. P., Ray Mill House, Maidenhead STEPHEN, Major JAMES J., Amersham
1902, July.	 STEPHENS, PEMBROKE SCOTT, K.C., Little Missenden House, Amersham STOWE, A., Trolly Hall, Buckingham SUTTON, F. L., Breakstones, Langton Green, Tunbridge Wells
1892, July. 1900, Aug.	TATHAM, Rev. F. H., M.A., Wing Vicarage, Leighton Buzzard TEB, R. HADEN, Priory Ford, Bourne End
1904, Feb.	THOMAS, JOHN, J.P., Brook House, Wooburn THOMAS, Miss H., Aylesbury THURLOW, T., High Wycombe
1905, Aug.	TYLER, G. D. HARDINGE, 35, Courtfield Road, S.W.
1904, Aug. 1884, April.	VAUGHAN, H. L., Eton College, Windsor VERNEY, Sir E. H., Bart., Claydon House, Winslow VERNEY, FREDK., M.P., 12, Connaught Place, Marble Arch, W.
1878, July.	VERNON, ARTHUR, Borshams, High Wycombe VERNON, R. D., Bower Hayes, High Wycombe
1900, Dec.	WATKINS, C. G., Aylesbury WATSON, Miss, Loosley Hill, Prince's Risborough WELLER, G., The Plantation, Amersham WELLER, W., Springfield Lodge, High Wycombe WELLER, Mrs., Springfield Lodge, High Wycombe

RECORDS OF BUCKINGHAMSHIRE.

1905. April,	WEST, L. H., LL.D., The Grange, Wendover
1865, Aug.	WETHERED, Colonel O. P., El Robado, Teneriffe
1865, Aug. *	WETHERED, T. O., Seymour Court, Great Marlow
1904, Feb.	WHALEY, Mrs., Taplow Lodge, Maidenhead
1904, Aug.	WIMPERIS, E. W., Slough
1905, May.	WHITTINGSTALL, Rev. H. O. F., The Rectory, Chalfont S. Giles
1903, May.	WHITBREAD, W., Hanslope, Stony Stratford
•	WILKINS, E., Aylesbury
1901, Dec.	WINTER, Rev. S. M., Dial Close, Great Marlow
1902, Nov.,	WOOD, HENRY J. T., Fingest Cottage, near High Wycombe
	WOOD, Rev. Canon, Hill House, Babbacombe, Torquay
1903, Aug.	Young, H. E., 147, Banbury Road, Oxford

Yonorary Members.

Ord, Mem.,

1876, June. Hon. Mem., 1890, July.

1893, Aug. HOPE, W. H. ST. JOHN, M.A., Society of Antiquaries, Burlington House, London, W.

MACRAY, Rev. W. D., F.S.A., Ducklington Rectory, Witney, Oxon

PARKER, JAMES, The Turl, Oxford



Bucks Architectural and Archaeological Society.

SUMMARY of RECEIPTS and PAYMENTS for the Year ending 31st December, 1905.

To Balance brought forward	£ s. d. 11 17 4 21 10 (65 13 (62 10 (6 10 (2 10 (2 10 (14 E 33 - 30 0	PAYMENTS. By Copies of Archæological Index, Caretaker		0 0 6 8 0 0 6 0 7 4 2
 B	138 1	4	£	138 1	4

Audited and compared with Vouchers and Pass Book and found correct.

THOS. HORWOOD, C. G. WATKINS,

AUDITORS.

20th April, 1906.

Donations to the Aylesbury Museum, 1906.

JANUARY.

Two Horse-shoes. Eythrop Bronze-gilt Crucifix, surface, arable land, near Beaconsfield Bucks Constable's Staff, 1764 Three Roman Coins, garden, Cad- more End Half-crown of Charles I., surface, arable land, Fingest	Mr. Holloway, Stone.
Small green-glazed pottery Jug, 14th century (found 1872), walled up in recess in E. wall, Hardwick Church	Deposited by Vicar and C.W.'s, Hard- wick.
Emanuel Bowen's Map of Bucks, c. 1760. Divided into Hundreds	Mr. John E. Pritch- ard, F.S.A., Hon. Sec. for Bristol, Bristol & Glouces- tershire Archæo- logical Society, 8, Cold Harbour Rd., Redland, Bristol.
Separates from RECORDS II. and III., 1861-66, of his four papers on "The Sepulchral Brasses of Bucks." A roll with rubbings of some Bucks brasses. Rolls with inscriptions from brasses in the Deaneries completed by the donor. Notes of other brasses verbatim et literatim.	Rev. J. A. Boodle, Boughton Vic., Faversham.
Two Mahogany Cabinets with drawers, containing (respectively) Insects and Fossils from various localities.	Miss Browne, The Cedars, High Wy- combe.
FEBRUARY. Extra copies of his papers as above.	Rev. J. A. Boodle.

DONATIONS 10 MUSEUM. AU
MARCH.
Leaden tobacco-box (the lid miss- ing). Parchment Lace-patterns $\left.\right\}$ Lady Smyth.
Antique Horse-shoe, Great Missen- den
April.
Akerman's "Tradesmen's Tokens Mr. Chas. Lowndes, of London," 4to, 1849 Stratford - upon - Avon.
Ogilby's Map of Bucks, 1675 Mr. S. G. Payne.
May.
Antique Horse-shoe. From an old) Mr. Huttleston, wall, Stone Stone.
Beads and other Antiquities, Egypt
"Essays on Gothic Architecture," by Warton and others, 3rd Edit., 8vo., 1808
Stuffed Long-eared Owl (Asio otus) $Mr.$ Leo Bonn, Wotton House.
Oyster shells containing traces of pigments (gold and red); a Lombardic C in brass (from an inscription let into marble matrix?); and other objects; found during restoration of Han- slope Church
JUNE.
Two human skeletons of the Early Iron Age, with iron spear-head, Burne Hill, Stone
Various animal bones, Bone pin, Roman minimi, and other objects excavated by Subscription, Burne Hill, Stone. (Not yet exhibited)

October.

53 Volumes and Parcels of MS.,)
Newspaper Cuttings, Engravings,	Mrs. Henry Gough
Brass-rubbings, etc., relating to	and Mr. Alfred B.
Bucks, collected by the late Mr.	Gough, Sandcroft,
Henry Gough and Mr. W. P.	Redhill, Surrey.
Storer	-

NOVEMBER.

Wooden	mask	and	feet	from)			
Mumm	y Case.	Aby	dos.	Head	Mrs.	С.	М.	Firth
in stor	ie, prob	ably	a scu	lptor's	> (në	ee.	Han	(sard),
	ece inte							Wells.
	Luxor						0	

Stuffed Golden - crested Wren (Regulus cristatus). Stone } Lady Smyth.

<